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INTHE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
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BRIAN BEA and JODY BEA, husband and wife, No. 99-2-00020-1

SUMMONS
(20 Day)
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-
d

V.

)
)
)
)
P
COLUMBIA RIVER GORGE COMMISSION, )
SKAMANIA COUNTY, KENN ADCOCK; .. )
YAUGHN LEIN, TIM SOUTHWORTH, JANICE )
STAVER, L. W. BUD QUINN, KATHARINE A_° )
SHEEHAN, ANNE SQUIER, BOB THOMPSON, )
ART CARROLL, DONALD F. DUNN, and LOUIE)
PITT, JR. in their official capacity as members of
the Columbia River Gorge Commission,

»
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ROBIN L. RIVETT : :
JOHN M. GROEN, WSBA No. 20864
Pacific Legal Foundation
10800 N_E. 8th Street
Suite325 -
Bellevue, Washington 98004
Telephone: (425) 635-0970
Facsimile: (425) 635-0196
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A lawsuit has been started ayunst )ou in the above- entitled court by Brian and
Jody Bca Petitioncrs. Petlllonem claim is <la(cd in the written complaint, a copy of which is
served upon you with this summons.

“In order to defend against this lawsuit, you must respond to the complaint by
stating your dcfcnsc in writing, and by scrving a copy upon the person signing this summons
within 20 days after the service of this summons, cxcludmg the day of scrvice, or a default
judgment may bc entered against jrou without notice. A default judgment is one where
Petitioners are entitled to what they asks for because you have not responded. If you serve a
notice of appearance on the undersigned person, you are entitled to notice before a default

judgment may be entered.

You may demand that the Petitioners file this lawsuit with the Court. If you do
s0, the demand must be in writing and must be served upon the person signing this summons.
Within 14 days after you serve the demand, the Petitioners must file this lawsuit with the Court

?

or the service on you of this summons and complaint will be void,

, WA 98004
(425) 6350970 FAX (425) 635-0196

I you wish to scek the advice of an altorney in this maltter, you should do so

prompily so that your written response, if any, may be served on time,

10800 NE 8th Street, Suite 325
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This summons is issued pussuant to rule 4 of the Superior Court Civil Rules of

the State of Wasf:ipgton

JOHM M. GROEN, WSBA No. 20864
Attomeys for Plaintiff

Pacific Legal Foundation
10800 N.E. 8th Street

Suite 325

Bellevue, WA 98004
Telephone: (425) 635-0970

Dated: ‘_3/311’17

FIRST AMENDIZD PET. FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SKAMANIA

BRIAN BEA and JODY BEA, husband and wife, No. 99-2-00020-1
Petitioners, FIRST AMENDED
PETITION FOR JUDICIAL
v. REVIEW AND COMPLAINT

ST O FOR DAMAGES
COLUMBIA RIVER GORGE COMMISSION,

SKAMANIA COUNTY, KENN ADCOCK, =~
VAUGHN LEIN, TIM SOUTHWORTH, JANICE

-STAVER, L. W. BUD QUINN, KATHARINE A.

SHEEHAN, ANNE SQUIER, BOB THOMPSON,
ART CARROLL, DONALD F. DUNN, and LOUIE
PITT, JR. in their official capacity as members of
the Columbia River Gorge Commission,

Respondents,

ROBIN L. RIVETT

JOHN M. GROEN, WSBA No. 20864
Pacific Legal Foundation
10800 N.E. 8th Street
Suite 325 -
Bellevue, Washington 98004
‘Telephone: (425) 635-0970
Facsimile: (425) 635-0196

Attomneys for Petitioners Bea
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Brian Beé and Jody Bea hereby allege as follows:

—

INTRODUCTION
1. This case invbli'es review of the administrative proccedings and order dated 7
January 25, 1999, by the Columﬁia River Gorge Commi_ssion (Gorge Commission).! Among
other things, the Gorge Commission’s oider requires Skamania Couniy (County) to revise its
decision (Director’s Decision NSA-96-81, Part 2) approving the land use application subm’ittedr
by Brian and Jody Bea (the Beas). ﬂe Gorge Commission also requires the County 1o issue a

revised decision that forces the Beas to move their recently constructed house to an alternative

location.

[ - - . T

PARTIES

—
—

2. Brian and Jody Bea, husband and wife, are individuals residing in the State of

-
[ ]

Washington. They are the owners of real property located ir. Skamania County which is the

. Suite 325

Bellevue, WA 98004

(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) 635-0196
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subject of this action. The subject property is a 20-acre parcel located approxix-nately one-half
mile northwest of Prindle, in the NW % of Section 11, Township 1 North, Range 5 Bast, WM.,
Washington.

—
W

3. The Columbia River Gorge Commission is a bi-state agency created by the

—
H

10800 NE 8th 5
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States of Oregon and Washington. RCW 43.97.015, ORS 196.150.
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4. Skamania County is a municipal corporation of the State of Washington.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

o
S B

5. Thisisa qasé of actual controversy between thie Beas, the Gorge

Commission, and Skamania Counfy.

S

, 6. Jurisdiction is conferreéd upon this Court by RCW 2.08.010 and 16 U'S.C.
§ 544m. » o

= B

7. Venueisin this Court pursuant to RCW 36.01.050.
17/ ’ )

X8

[
p

' In a separate action under Skamania County Superior Court No. 98-2-00099-8, Skamania
County filed a supplemental petition to set aside the order of the Columbia River Gorge
Commission. Thi_s action by the Beas challenges the same Gorge Commission order.

B

FIRST ALEENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
_ & COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page |
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8. In 1986, the Unitcd States Congress adopted the Columbia River Gorge
National Scenic Area Act (the Act), 16 U.S.C. § 544, et seq., which became effective through
an interstate compact between the States of Oregon and Washington. Among other things, the

Act authorized formation by the states of the Columbia River Gorge Commission.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

9. Oneofthe carly responsibilities of the Gorge Commission was to prepare and

adopt a Management Plan that included “land use designations™ for the use of nonfederal lands

within the Scenic Area. 16 U.S.C. § 544d(b). A primary purpose of the Management Plan is te

ensure that land in the Scenic Area is used consistently with the purposes and standards of the

Act.

10. InOctober, 1991, the Gorge Commission adopted the Management Plan for

the Columbia River Gorge National Scenic Area. The Management Plan includes provisions

for protection of scenic resources.

11. The Gorge Commission has responsibility for administering the

Management Plan. 16 U.S.C. § 544e(a).

12. Afier adoption by the Gorge Commission of the Management Plan, counties

within the scenic area may adopt a “land use ordinance" setting land development standards
consistent with the Management Plan. 16 U.S.C. § 544e(b)(1).

13. In 1993, Skamania County adopted Ordinance 1993-04 as its land use
ordinance (codified as Titlé 22, Skamania County Code (SCC)) pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 544e.

The Gorge Commission reviewed the ordinance and determined that it was consistent with the

Management Plan.

was deIegaled the land use pe'mlttmg authonty of the Commission for the purpose of
administering the Manage'ment Plan. Final land use decisions of the County may be appealed
to the Gorge Commission by any adversely affected person or entity.
15. Onor about November 27, 1996, the Beas submltted an apphcatlon and site

plan to lhe Skamania County Department of Planning and Commumty Developmcnl proposing

FIRST AMENDED PET FOR JUDICIAL REV.
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14. Pursuant to the Commission’s approval of the erdinance, Skamania County




W00 3 v B W N -

e
—-— O

5, &

2385 13
bz
9 gc-is
ot L
EE ¢

<= § 17

B =2 8 8

23
24
25
26
27

construction of a single-family residence with accessory buildings (shop and bam) on their
property in Skamania County. 7 7

16. The Beas' appiication {County File No. NSA-96-81) was reviewed by
County planning officials to determine whether the proposal was consistent with the

requiremenis of the County land use ordinance.
17. On April 4 and 9, 1997, Skamania County planning staff conducted site
visits on the Beas’ property. The County also received comments from interested parties

including a May 6, 1997, comment letter from the Gorge Commission.

I8. On May 16, 1997, a Staff Report was completed. The Stat;f' Report includes
numerous findings of fact, including that an “adequate site plan was submiited.” Staff Report
at 5. The Staff Report also found that the “proposed development will be visible from several |
KVA'’s [key viewing areas].” The Staff Report further found that the “existing vegetation is not

sufficient to provide screening” of the proposed building sites. Staff Report at 6. The Staff
Report further found:

As a condition of approval, applicant should be required to plant
10 screening trees at 6 fect in height, 12 foot on center, staggered,
with at least half of the trees being coniferous o provide winter
screening. The above mentioned screening trees should be
located behind the proposed residence between two large existing
fir trees, enabling the development to blend in with existing
topography. Also, as a condition of approval, applicant should be
required to plant 10 screening trees in front of the home. Trees
shotild be 6 feet tall at the time of planting, placed 12 feet on
center, staggered, and should be at least half coniferous to
provide winter screening.

Staff Report at 11. :

19. B;sed on the entire record, including the Staff Report, ihe Director of the
Skamania County Department of"P]anning and Community Development found the Beas’
proposed house and accessory buiidings 1o be consistent with the Counfy’é land use ordinance,
Title 22 SCC and, thereby, >appjroyed the Bea.é’ applicatioh. The approval had va}ﬁous

conditions, including Condition No. 30, requiring that the Beas plant 10 screening trees in front

of the home and 10 screening trees in back of the home as described in the Staff Report.

28

i
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1 _ 20. Noticeand a copy of thé Director’s Decision (NSA-96-81) was provided to

all parties including the Columbia River Gorge Commission.

21. No person or entity appealed the Director’s Decision. The Counly’s

decision, therefore, became final on June 9, 1997.

22. On June 10, 1997, Skamania County approved a revised location for the

23. On August 15, 1997, a County planner inspected and approved the site

location for the shop.

2
3
4
5
6§ accessory shop building. A copy of this decision was provided to the Gorge Commission.
7
8
9

24. The Beas completed construction of the shop in September, 1997.

104 25. The Beas subsequently submitted plans for the actual construction of the

11] house. Condition No. 27 of the Director's Decision states in pari:

12 The house shall be limited to one-story house with a daylight
basement. However, the main floor may include a loft so long as

13 the total height of the house, above the floor elevation of the main
floor, does not exceed 25 feet.

15] The plans submitted by the Beas included all structural elements of the proposed house

Bellevue, WA 98004
(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) €35-0196
ry

16§ including elevations and floor plan: The County reviewed the plans and determined that the

10800 NE 8th Street, Suite 325

PACIFIC LEGAL FOUNDATION

17} plans were for a onc-story house with daylight basement and loft and were consistent with the

18} requirements of the Director’s Decision, including the overall height limitation, and, therefore,

19] a building permit was issued to the Beas.

20§ 26. On April 10, 1998, a County building inspector approved the excavation, -

21] site, and footing for the house.

22 27. OnMay 15, 1998, a Copnty building inspector approved the foundation,

23} plumbing, and slab for the house.

24 28. The Beas continued with construction of the house pursuant to the permits

2

Ln

and by July 27, 1998, the outside shell had been completed.

] 29. On July 27, 1998, pursuant to Commission Rule 350-30, et. seq., the Gorge

27} Commission initiated an enforcement action against Skamania County by serving the County

28y with a Notice of Alleged Violation regarding the Director’s Decision app;oﬁng the 'Bea's'r‘ house

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page 4




and acc&ssbfy buildings. The Beas were not named as a defendant to the Notice of Alleged
Violation and there were no allegations against the Beas. The Notice of Alleged Violation was
directed solely to Skamania County.

30. On September 3, 1998, the Gorge Commission issued a Supplcmental and
Amended Notice of Alleged Violation (Subplemenlal Notice). The Beas were not named as a
defendant fo this supplemental notice of violation and there were no allegations against the
Beas. As with the July 27, 1998, Notice of Alleged Violation, the suppleméntal nolice was
directed solely at Skamania County.

31. Pursuant to Gorge Commission rules and procedurres in an enforcement

(== - T - . T O T )

proceeding, Skamania County was provided 14 days to file an answer to the nolice of violation.

—
—

Commission Rule 350-30-040. In addition, pursuant to Gorge Commission rules, Skamania

o

County was provided an opportunity to negotiate a resolution with the Gorge Commission.

el

Commission Rule 350-30-050. However, because a resolution was not reached, the

enforcement action against Skamania County became a “‘contested case” proceeding.

—
w

Commission Rule 350-30-070.

Bellevoe, WA 98004

(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) 635-0196
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32. The contested case proceeding commenced on September 1, 1998. The

10800 NE 8th Street, Suite 325
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Beas were not a party to the proceeding.
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33. On September 1, 1998, the contested case proceeding against Skamania

—
O

County included opening statements presented by atlorneys for Skamania County and for the

]
[=]

Executive Director of the Gorge Commission. The proceeding also included taking the

[
—

testimony of Mr. Allen Bell, a Gorge Commission staff planner.

[
[

34. In prosecuting its enforcément aclion against the Couhty, the Gorge

[~
o3

Comliiission repeatedly stated through its attorneys that the enforcement action was not against

e
o+

‘-tihe Beas, but was directed solely at Skamania County. For example, the Hearing Brief of the

[
A

Execiifive Director filed in Skamania County Superior Cousrt No. 98-2-00099-8, on August 28,

o
=)

1698, states at 12 that the t;nforcément action was brought to “evaluate the County’s conduct.”

N
-]

The same document states at 23: “The result should place the burden of the violation where it

[d
[==]

belongs—on the County, not the property owners.”

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
& COMPLAINT FCR DAMAGES - Page 5
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35. In an action brought by Skamania County cha]lénging the Gorge

-—

Commission’s jurisdiction to appeal the Diréctor‘s Decision, the Gorge Commission’s attorney
stated in open court to Judge Ladley as follows: “Our position is the County is responsible for
administering its own ordinance. Only the County makes decisions in this case, so this is
strictly an enforcement action against the County and not againé! Mr. and Mrs. Bea.”
Comments of Mr. Lawrence Watters, Transcript of Proceeding (Transcript), Augus't 31, 1998,
at 45 (Skamania County Supeﬁor Court No. 98-2-00099-8).

36. Through its attorneys, the Gorge Commission has stated that its

D Q0 =~ O A B W N

enforcement action against the County was not a proceeding to collaterally challenge the land

—
=]

use decision regarding the Beas® property but was merely a review of the County’s actions.

—
Y

Through its attomey, the Gorge Commission stated in open court to Judge Ladley that the

N

enforcement action “is not an action challenging issuatice of a decision. ... [O]ur action is not

—
o

to collaterally attack this decision.” Comments of Mr. Lawrence Waiters, Transcript at 45.

37. prile directing its Notice of Afteged Violation SoIely against Skamania

—
W

County, and despite the Gorge Cominission’s written and oral statements characterizing the

Bellevue, WA 98004 ‘
(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) 635-0196
B
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nature of the enforcement proceeding, the relief requested in the Notice of Alleged Violation

10800 NE 8th Street, Suite 325
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directly impacted the rights and interests of the Beas.

—
Q0

38. The relief requested by the Notice of Alleged Violation against Skamania

-
O

County included immediate cessation of all development activity on the Beas’ pmpei:ty and

o8
(=]

revision of the Director’s Decision so that the Beas’ nearly completed house and shop would be

relocated to some alternative location.

NN
N e

39. On September 18, 1998, the Executive Direc_tor of the Gorge Commission

[ o]
w

filed a motion entitled Executive Director’s Motion Regarding Parties. That motion requested

[\ ]
o

that the Beas be joiﬁed as a “‘party” to the proceeding but did not request that the Beas be joined

[ =]
Lh

45 a “defendant” to the Notices of Alleged Violation against the County. In support of that

[\%]
[=a)

motion, the Executive Director stated at 2 as follows:

[ ]
-~

[T]he matter pending before the Goi'ge Commission is an
enforcement action brought solely against the County; . . . the
relief requested by the Executive Director against the County is

o
o0

_ FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page 6
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solzly the responsibility of the County; . . . any costs incurred by
the property owners in participating in the hearing or in
resolution of the issues should be solely the responsibility of the
County.

I

40. In objecting to being named as a party o the contested case proceeding, the
Beas stated through their counsel’s letter dated September 28, 1998, that they were confused by
the motion to rame them as a party. The Executive Direclor’s motion states that the Executive
Director is not taking any action with respect to the Beas, but would take action only against

Skamania County. The Beas stated that it was their “understanding that the real issue here is

o o ~) (=) N P - N

not their house, but rather the macro issues surrounding the County’s development review

—
[=)

process in general.” The Beas further explained:

o
-

It has not been the Beas® understanding that [removal or
structural alteration of their home] is really whal the Gorge
Commission has been seeking, but rather; acknowledgment by
Skamania County that issues such as these will be dealt with
differently, and from the Gorge Commission’s perspective, in a
more rigorous manner in the future.

— —
W N

—
Ln

Finally, the Beas stated:

Bellevue, WA 98004
(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) 635-0196
Iy

—
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If the Gorge Commission is truly contemplating an order
requiring the house to be moved or structurally altered, then the
Beas will need substantial time to review the record, hire expert
witnesses relating to visual subordination, planning, site
engineering, landscape architecture, and “skyline analysis.” The
Beas would anticipate needing at least 90 to 120 days to prepare
for a contested case hearing before the Gorge Commission, if
such an erder were {0 be contemplated.

10800 NE $th Street, Suite 325
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41. The contested casé hearing continrued on September 29, 1998, and at that
continued hearing the Gdrge Commissioﬁ joined thj; Beas as a party over their written
objection. The Beas were not a participant at the September 29, 1998, hearing.

- 4. In joining the Beas as a party to the proceeding, neither the Gorge

Commission nor the Executive Direcior of the Gorge Commission identified the Beas as a

defendant io the Notice of Alleged Violation or Supplemental Notice directed against Skamania
rCounty. '

"
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43. The Notice of Alleged Violation and the Supplemental Notice wete not
amended to be directed to the Beas. Although the Beas were jointed as a party in the contested
case proceeding, as was Friends of the Columbia River Gorge, the Beas were not named as a
defendant in the cnforcement proceeding against Skamania Counity.

44. In joining the Beas as a party to the contested case proceeding, there was no
new Notice of All_e_ged Violation directed to the Beas under Commission Rule 350-30-030;
Similarly, neither the Gorge Commission nor its Executive Dircctor has ever issued a plain
statement of any alleged violation by the Beas under Commission Rule 350-30-030(1 }a).

45. Néither the Gorge Commission nor its Executive Director provided the Beas
an opportunity to file an Answer pursuant to Commission Rule 350-30-040.

46. Neither the Gorge Commission nor its Execulive Director provided the Beas
an opportunity to resolve any alleggd violation through the procedures set forth in Commission
Rules 350-30-050 and 350-30-060.

47. On October 13, 1998, cotinsel for the Beas received by mail from the
Gorge Commission a document list and a copy of the written documents already admitted
into the record of the contested casé proceeding. The Beas were not provided a transcript
of the September 1, 1998, and September 29, 1998, proceedings before the Gorge
Commission.

48. Ata prehwn'ng conference held on October 23, 1998, counsel for the Beas
a_sked counsel for the Executive Director whether any allegations of misconduct were being
alleged againsi the Beas. The Executive Director’s 6ounsel stggpd that there were no aliegations
against the Beas. |

49. The cont&stt;d cas¢ hearing was continued on Nevember 16, 19, and 20, and
concluded on November 30, 1998. The Beas participated in the; hearing oh those dates. The
Gorge Commission’s final order was signed on J;ﬁuary iS, 1999.

) 50. Despite the representation that the enforcement proceeding was merely
a review of the County’s actions and was not a collateral attack on the ]aﬁd use decision,
the Gorge Commission’s order tcrmfnat&s or seis aside‘the May 16, 1997, Director’s

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
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Decision and requires the County to modify its decision by “adoptfing] a new or revised
decision” that includes relocating the structures fo alternative sites. ‘

51. Inrequiring a new or revised Director’s Decision that includes relocating”
the structures, the Gorge Commissién’s order directly impacts the rights and interests of the
Beas. The Gorge Commission’s order does not state that Skmnania County is to bear any or all
cc;sts associated with relocating the Beas® house or other costs to the Beas resulting from the
order. |

52. The Gorge Commission’s January 25, 1999, order operates as an injunction
against the Beas in that the order requires that the “County shall immediately issue an order
stopping the property 0%ers from continuing any development activity on the site.”’ Order
at 32:25-26.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Judicial Review and Relief Pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 544m)

53. The Beas repeat, replcad, and reallege as though set forth in full each and

every allegation contained in Paragraphs | through 52 inclusive.
Count One ¢

54. The Gorge Commission lacks standing, legal authority, and_/or jurisdiction
to modify, terminate, or set aside the May 16, 1997, Director’s Decision approving the Beas®
proposal for a house and accessory buildiﬁgs.

55. The authority of the Gorge Commission to ﬁzodil‘y, terminate, or sét aside
the Ma)} 16, 1997, Director’s Decision is by the appeal process pursuant to 16 U.S.C.

§ 544(a)(2). The Gorge Commission’s aclions 1o reopen, modify, terminate, or set aside the
Director’s Decision are barred bf the provisions of the Sceﬁic Act, RCW 43.97.015, and
Skamania County Code Title 22 ' '

56. The Gorge Commission;s conclusion that it has jurisdiction in this matter is
contrary to law.
m
/e
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Count Two

57. The Gorge Commission Ia{:ks standing, legal aul‘hon'ly and/or jurisdiction to
énjoin the Beas from utilizing their land o'rroontinuing with construction pursuant to permit
approvals issUedrby Skamania County. 16 U.S.C. § 544m{b)(1)}(B).

58. In ﬁ}e alternative, assuming the Gorge Commission has authority to impose
an injunctive remedy Von the Beas, the Gorge Commiission’s order requiring an alternative
location for the Beas® house is inequitable, unlawfully excessive, and unduly burdensome to the
Beas in light of the circumstances and equities in the matter, as well as the involvement and
unclean hands of the Gorge Commission in contributing to the circumstances which gave n'sé to
this matter. 7

| ) Count Three

59. The Gorge Commission’s order dated January 25, 1999, entitled Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Order, is legally inadequate because the findings of fact
are conclusory statements that fail to includé the reasons and basis for the findings, the findings
fail to consist of a concise statement of the underlying facts supporting the findings, and any |
findings based substantially upon credibility of evidence or demeanor of witnesses are fiot
identified.

Count Four

60. As applied to the Beas, or as relied upon by the Gorge Commission to
justify imposing a remnedy against the Beas, the Beas challenge the following findings as not
supported by sufficient evidence and/or as legally inadequate and unla\ﬁﬁ.ll because they are
vaéuc,";mbiguoué, mis]eading;'incomplete, repelitive, beyond the scope of the Notice of
Alleged Violation or the Supplemental and Amended Notice df Alleged Vic;lation, or involve
facts or accusations that were required to be alleged against the Beas through a plain statement
in a Notice of Alleged Violation pﬁrsuant to the Commission Rule 350-30-030, but were not so
dleged, - '

a. Finding B.1: that the house and shop are highly visible from four key
viewing areas. 7 »

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page 10




b. F inding B.A4: relating to alternative sites.

Y

2 c. Finding B.6: ri;garding use of existing topography to screen the house.
3 d. Finding B.7: regarding location of the house.
4 e. Finding B.9: that the house could not be visually subordinate within two
7 5] years. -
6 f. Finding B.10: regarding fuel breaks and landscaping requirements.
7 g. Findihg B.11: regarding visual subordination.
. 8 h. Finding B.12: regarding visual subordination.
9 i. Finding B.14: regarding whether or not the house is a one-étory house with
10} daylight basement and loft.

j- Finding B.15: regarding elevation of the house.

g § g 12 k. Finding B.16: regarding notice, staking; and placement of the house.
2‘3 ég 13 L. Finding B.17: regarding set back from adjacent properties.

7 "3 g;g 14 m. Finding B.18: regarding screening by topography and vegetation.
§ §§§ 15 n. ?inding B.19: regarding vegetation.

Egi 2 16 o. Finding B.20: reparding elevation drawings and skyline.

N g 17 p- Finding B.21: regarding topography.

%
o

. Finding B.23: regarding design of the home.

o

r. Finding B.25! reparding design of the home.

20 s. Finding B.26: regarding color contrasts.
21 t. Finding B.27: regarding skylipe.

-2 u. Finding B.30: 'rélating to lhevBeas' site plans and drawings.
23 v. Finding B.34: regarding allégations against the Beas.

7 24] . w. Ij‘indingrBjS: regﬁrding Beas’ response to an August 12, 1998 letter.

» 725 A copy of the Goi’ge Commission decision with these cbmplete findings is
26§ attached as Exhibit A. |
alm

/.

3
[~
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Count Five

61. As applied to the Beas, or as relicd upon by the Gorge Commission lo
justify imposing a remedy against the Beas, the Beas challenge the conclusions of law
contained in Section VI of the Commission’s order as being contrary to law, as not supported
by lziv;vﬁ:liy adopted findings, as unlawful!y beyond the scope of the Notice of Alleged
Violation and the Supplemental and Amended N.olice of Allégcd Violation, and as involving
allegations or accusations against the Beas that are required to be alleged through a plain
statement in a Notice of Alleged Violation pursuant to Commission Rule 330-30-030, but were
not so alleged.

. SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Relief, RCW Chapter 7.24)

62. The Beas repeat, replead, and reallege as though set forth in full each and
“every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 61 inclusive.

63. There is an actual justiciable controversy regarding the respective rights and
duties of the parties which can only be determined by the Court.

64. The Beas contend that as the property owners against whom a remedy was
sought, the Beas are an indispensable defending party to the enforcement proceeding against
Skamania County. However, the Beas were not timely joined as a party and were never joined
as a defendant in the enforcement pmMng. The joinder of the Beas as a party occurred well
after meaningful proceedings ﬁad commenced, including two days of contested case
proceedings. The ﬁnlimely joinder of an indispensable party Such as the Beas requires
dismissal of the enforcement proceedings. Alternatively, the enforcement proceedings should
be dismissed at least to the extent that any remedy would affect the interests and rights of the
Beas The Gorge Commnsswn denies these a]leganons

' 65. The Beas funher contend thal the Gorgc Commission has unlawfully and
arbitrarily deprivéd the Beas of their nght to1 use, develop, and enjoy their property and thus,

violated the Beas’ right to due process. The Beas ﬁxrthcf contend that the Gorge Commission

[
-]
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impfdperly and untawfully interfered with the process by which Skamania County issues
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permnts and has, therefore, arbltranly dcpnvod the Bcas of thclr property absent the process
which is due, The Gorge Commission’s interference and actions with respect to the Beas is in
excess of lawful authority and arbitrary. The Gorge Commission deniés these allegations.

66. The Beas further contend that their due process rights have been violated
because they were nolr provided adequate notice or a full and fair opportunity to be heard
through the contested case proceeding against Skamania County. The quge Commission’s
pfboedure of initiating an enforcement proceeding against the County, but therein réqucsting a

remedy against the Beas, while also representing to the Beas and to Judge Ladley that the

- T T - S . T S T I

enforcement action was only against Skamania County and not the Beas, violales the Beas’

—
(=]

rights to due process. The Gorge Conimission denics these allegations.

—
—

67. The Beas’ rights to due process have been denied by application of

—
[

unconstitutionally vague terms and criteria. For example, the requirement under the Skamania

—
A

County Code that their proposed structures be *“visually subordinate” is unconstitutionally

vague. That criteria is so vague that men and women of common intellj gence must necessarily

-—
W

guess at its meaning and differ as to its application. The County Code does not provide

Beilevue, WA 98004
(425) 635-0970 FAX (425) 6350196
=

ascertainable or workable criteria biit leaves broad discretion as to what constitutes “visually

I
o

10800 NE &th Street, Suite 325

z
;
:
3
e
:
&

—
-]

subordinate™ so that permit determinations are based upon whim, caprice, or subjective

-
(-]

oons1demtlons In the same manner, the Beas contend that the requirement under the Skamania

O

County Code that siting of structurés be on portions of the property that minimize visibility is -

]
[=]
=

unconstitutionally vague. The Gorge Cdmmission and Skamania County contend that these

provisions of the County Code are not unoonsiituﬁonally vague.

S

* 68. The Beas further conterid that their gue process rights have been denied by

N
W

application of the “visually subordinate” criteria as being a lawful basis to require relocating

[
FaN

their house. The Beas contend that relocating the house is not a reasonably necessary means to

(o]
Lh

achieve the public purpose of the regulation and is unduly opprcsswe against the Beas. The

[
(=)

Gorge Commission denies these allegations.
i
7

o
~)

b
-]
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10
11
12
13
14
IIS
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

2
2

27
28

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Damages Claim Agaihsl Gorge Commission; RCW 64.40.020)
69. The Beas repeat, replead, and reallege as though set forth in full each> énd
every allegation contained in Paragraphs | through 68 inclusive.
' 70. The Beas arc the owners of a property interest. Tl'rey ﬁled an application for
a land use permit which has now been finally denied by lfrc Gorge Commission.

71. The Gorge Commissipn is a public pody exercising regulatory authority or
control over the use of real property in the state.

72. Denial of the Beas® permit approvals was an unlawful action or was in
excess of lawful authority and was made with knowledge or should reasonably have bepn
known to be unlawful or in excess of lawful authority and which has caused darnagcs to the
Beas. Denial of the Beas’ permit approval is also an arbitrary and capricious act based on
unconstitutionally vague terms and criteria and has caused damages to the Beas.

73. There are no further administrative remedies available to exha_usl.

74. As an incident of bringing and maintaining this action, the Beas have
incurred litigation costs and are cntitled under RCW 64.40.020{2) to an award of reasonable
costs and ﬁuomeys’ fees,

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Civil Rights, 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
75. The Beas repeat, replead, and reallege as though set forth in full each and

“every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 74 inclusive.

76. The Gorge Commission, the Gorge Commission members acting in their
official capacity, and Skamania Courity, through their official acis, have deprived the Beas of
their property without due process orf law contrary to the Fourteenth Amendmérrt of the United
States Constitution. The Beas have been deprived of their property without constltutronally
requlred procedural and/or substantive due process by the arbitrary and capnc:ous denial of
nhecessary permits {o construct and maintain a lawful use of their property, such dema[ also
being without authority of law and without adequate notice and opportunity to be heard. The

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page 14
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Gcrge Comm:ssma ’s termination of the Beas’ land use approvals funhcr fails to substanhally
advance legitimate public purposcs is arbitrary and capricious, is not a normal delay associated
with the planning process, and deprives the Beas of property rights and, thereby, takes the
Beas® property withoal paymenl' of just compensation in violation of the Fifth Ameﬁdmcnl of
the United States Constitution. 7

77. Atall times material hereto the Gorge Commission and Skamania County
acted or failed to act under color of state law. The Gorge Commission and Skamania County
are both “persons” for purposes of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.
78. The Beas are entitled to recover their damages against the Gorge

Commission and/or Skamama County in an amount to be fally proved al lime of trial as well as

reasonable attorneys® fees and expenses of litigation pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Inverse Candemnation, Washington Constitution Article 1,§16)

79. The Beas repeal, replead; and reallege as though set forth in full cach and
every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 78 inclusive.

80. The Gorge Commission has taken or damaged the property of the Beas
without just compensation having first been paid contrary to the Washington Constitution
Article 1, Section 16, entitling Petitioners herein io a judgment for compensation for a
temporary or a pennanent taking or damaging, plus mterest plus reasonable attorneys” fees to
be awarded pursuant to RCW 8.25.075(3) in an amouit to be fully proved at the time of trial.

_ WHEREF ORE, the Beas pray for judgment as follows:

1. the Gorge Commission’s order dated January 25, 1999, be invalidated and the
enforcement proceeding against Skamania County be dismissed;

2. the Beas be awarded relief against the Gorge Commission for damages as
may be proved at the time of trial, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses;

3.a declaration that the requirement that ihe Beas’ proposed structures be

wsually subordinate and be located to minimize wsrb:hty 1s unconstifutionally vague and

unmforccable' and

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
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4. any such further relicf as the Court mas' deem just and equitable.

DATED: March 31, 1999,

FIRST AMENDED PET. FOR JUDICIAL REV.
& COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Page 16

Rcspcélﬁllly submitted,

ROBIN L. RIVETT
JOHN M. GROEN

By Oﬁ‘éﬂ Y, A(Nh..,

Jo_}{N M. GROEN, WSBA No. 20864

Attorneys for Petitioners Beas
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1
12
13
14

BEFORE THE COLUMBIA RIVER GORGE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

FINDINGS OF FACT,
SKAMANIA COUNTY CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

AND FINAL ORDER
Director’s Decision NSA-96-81

L. INTRODUCTION
A.  Background

The Columbm River Gorge Commissioi held a coutested case hearing in this matter that

15
16
17
18
19

21

24

26
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was conducted ptmmnt to the Commission’s administrative procedure rules 350-16. The
oonmdusehemngoommnoedonSeptanbcrl 1958, continued on September 29,
November 16, 19, a:nd20 andconcludedonNovembGrBO 1998. The presiding officer was Bob

Thompson, Chair of the Columbia River Gorge Connmss:on (hereinafter Commission). Ten of

ﬂwCommsdemvwngmembashwdaﬂofthelesumonymdmtedmﬂnmhmon 4
forthlsease.

ThemmwedcusehemmgstanmedﬁomaNomeofVlolahonlssuedbyd)eExeamve

SkannniaCo\mtyBoa:dofComniiwionqs(hereinaﬁerCOﬁnty), allegingthéComtyDim‘aor's
Dects:onVlolatedtheColmnmelverGorgeNauonal Scemc Arca Act (herelmﬁchemc Ad),
mdlheSkamamaCountyOIdmnce 1993-04. ASupplemental andAmendedNouceofAlleged
Violation allegmg additional violations was issued to tbe County on September3 1998. 7




2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23

The Executiv‘e Director was represented by Bart Brush at the oontwtedrcase hearing, and
the County was represented by Brad Andersen. A motion for intervention by the Friends of the
Columbia Gorge (hercinafier Friends) was granted on September 1, 1998, and the Friends was
L ﬁpmentd by Gary Kahn. On September 1, 1998, Skamania County moved to join the Beas as
a party and/or to dismiss the case for failure to limely name an’ indispensable party. On

September 30, 1998, on the Executive Director’s motion, the Commission issued an order joining

the property owners Brian and Jody Bea, as parties to the contested case proceeding. They were
represented by Brent Boger of the Pacific Legal Foundation. The Commission was advised and
represented by Oregon Assistant Attorney General Michael Huston and Washington Assistant
Attomney General Colleen Evans.

B.-  Nature of This Proceeding

The Scenic Area Act required the Commission and the U.S. Forea Service to develop a
Management Plan for the proféction of resources and the regulation of all development in the
National Scenic Area. Both agencics were required to review and approve land use ordinances
adopted by each county in the Séenic Area in conformity with the Management Plan The
Management Plan was adopted in 1991, and in 1993, Skamania County developed its ordinance -
whlchwnssubsequcntlyappmvedbyﬂleGorgc Commission and the Forest Service as required
by the Scenic Act. (For purposes of this order, this hierarchy of laws — namely the Act, the
MmagunemPlanandtheCountyordmancc—lsmfen*edtoas“theScemchws")

This proceeding involves the Skamania County Planning Director’s conditional approval
of the propesty owners® proposed development (hereinafter the County Director’s Decision or
simply the County decision). The development in question involves a housc shop and bam on
whatlsamenﬂyaZO-wepamelownedbananandJodme(thepmpcrtyowners) ‘The
pmpe:tylslwatedone-halfmlleno;ﬂnwmofl’nnd]e

After construction of the structures began, the Executive Director concluded that the
County had violated and was contmumg to violate, including through failures to enforcc the

PAGE 2 - FINDINGS OF FACT » CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER




1 l Scenic Area Act, the Management Plan, the Cqunty‘s approved ordinance and the conditions of
the County Director’s Decision. The Executive Director so advnsed _the County by a letier dated
July 21, 1998. In a formal Notice of Viola_tion dated July 27, 1998, the Executive Director
initiated this enforcement promdmg After the confested case hearing had begun, the Executive
Director issued a Supplemental Nﬁtice of Violation, which also became the Subject of the

2

3

4

5

6 | hearing. Initially, the County was the oaly named party to the proceeding. On Seplember |,
7 { 1998, the Gorge Commission pennitted the Friends of the Gorge to intervene. On September 30,
8 | 1998, on the Exccutive Director’s motion, the Beas were joined as parties. The reasons for
9 joiningtheBeasarecleaﬂystatedinthereoordandarediscussedlatcrinthisOrdcr.

10 The Executive Director contends that the County has violated ﬁumemus provisions of the
i Seeniclawsmmughi:sdecisioqapmvingmesummatminmismse,aswcuasmmugh
12 | its failure to enforce several of the conditions of the County Director’s Decision.  While the

13 § County contests some of the Executive Director’s alleged violations, it argues primarily that

14 | oeither the Exccutive Director nor the Commission has jusisdiction or authority to bring this
15 | caforcement proceeding at this time. Onthcsameandsomeadditionalgromds,mepmperty
16‘ owners concur. Generally concurring with the Executive Director, the Friends of the Columbia
17 Gorge support the position that this agency has jurisdiction and authority to bring fhis
18 mfmeununproeeedmg |

19 L RULINGS ON OBJECTIONS

208 - (1) Allrulings on objections made dusig the hearing arc affirmed.

21 Q) -Anyobjecﬁonsnotspociﬁcaﬂynﬂcdondmingﬂlehwingmdeniei
Co» M. RULINGS ON MOTIONS |

xnl _wmgsmaemmmdmméhaﬁggmaﬂirmedexwptasmmm
24 ] o).

in(3). o R

it
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25 ) (2) Any motions not specifically ruled on during the hearing are demed, excepl as
26 | noted '




(3)  The Executive Dlrector‘s motion to conform the Notices of leahons to lhe
cvidence is granted. It is applled in one respect, namely to make explicit that the allegations
include, wherever appropriate, failure to enforce the conditions of the Director’s Decision, as
well as the particular terms of that decision. Contrary to motions and argument from the County
and the property owners, 1twasclearfmm the onset of this contested case hearing (hat

2

3

4

5

6 | enforcement, and specifically failure to enforce the conditions of approval, was a significant part
7 § of the Executive Director’s case. That was explicit in the Executive director’s July 21 letter 1o
8 § the County, which stated “[t]hese developments may also violate conditions of appmval in
9 Dilwtor’s Decision NSA 96-81, Part 2" It was implicit in the Notices of Violation, as

10 § demonstrated in the middle paragraph on Page 2 of the Supplemcntal Notice of Violation, which

12 | the south.” Given that the Director’s written Decision conditions development on locating the

13 J bouse at least 200 feet from adjacent propertics, the Executive Director included failure to
14 mfomewlthmthcmeamng of the alleged violations.

15 (49)  Motions refating 10 the jurisdiction or authority of the Commission to hold this
16 pmceedmg and consnder the alleged violations are discussed in “V. Jurisdiction” below.

18 IV. FINDINGS OF FACT

20 d&em'bedewhonAofﬂnsOrder AddmonalﬁndmgsoffactarecomainedinSccﬁonB.

21 JA..  Stipulated Chronology

2] Event/Activity | Pate Description/Comment

1. Gm-ge Commission adopts - 1991
24 Management Plan - :

" PAGE4- FINDINGS OF FACT, » CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER

11 tefetstoﬂowmty“allomngthe bouse to be si(ed ImsﬂmZOOfeelﬁomadjacentpmpcrtyto :

9 . The parties o the proceeding shpulaled to the following table of events and timie fratnes -




[
—
N

2
3 3.
4
5

4,
6

i
8
9 5.

10 §

11 6.

12 ,
7.

13

14 8.
15

9.
16

10.
17
18
19 :
20 11.
21
2 12.

i 23

24

~ requesting whether cultural or

. The County issues Notice of

- Deadline for appealing NSA-96-81]

E A S L et e, e

Skamania County adopts, and 1993
Commission approves, ordinances in
question

The Beas submit to the County an 11/96 County Record, p. 99
application for approval of a land

division, a house and related o
structures

The County sends letter to Forest
Service and Gorge Commission staff,

1212496

historical reconnaissance is required;
enclosing applicant’s site plan and
application

Forest Service mcpo;ds to County
letter (sée #4 above); including
annotated site plan

Adminjstrative Record,p

17297
i 60/61

4/16/97 County Record, p. 57

Development Review

Friends comments on the Beas'
application

Commission staff comments on the
Beas’ application

County deadline for comment

County issues its decision, NSA-96-
81, Parts #1 and #2, on the Beas’
application; a copy of the Director’s
Decision and Staff Report was

4125097 County Record, p. 54

5/6/97 County Record, p. 53

591
5119917

Parts #1 and #2, to County Board of
Adjustinent
Comtyappmv&snewsiteforﬁxe

shop and sends copy of decision to
the Director and the Friends
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21

24

13.

14.

1S.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23,

24,

27.

County planner inspects and
approves site and location for shop

The Beas complete construction on
« »mp

Deleted

The Beas submit revised site plan to

County dated 3/6/98
Land division finalized, with quit

claim deed, legal description and plat

County planners visit site and take
photographs

County building i
excavation, site,
house

The Beas request that County
increase residence height

The Beas submit survey/lot size
information to County

County Planmng Department
to the Beas submiital of
surveyilot size letter

footing for

County denies request to amend

Director's Decision regarding height;
copy provided to the Director and the
Fricads, with Notice of Appeal rights
foundation, plumbing, slab for house

County building inspector issues
building permit for house

Director sends letter to Skamania -

County, asking County to correct’
alleged violations

Director issues Notice of Violation

and Summary Order

I pproves

8115197

997

36198
4/3/98
4/8/98

4/10/98

4/13/98
4127198

4128/98

5/8/98

5/15/98

5122198

7121/93

1127/98

PAGE 6 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER

County Record, p. 22

County Record, p. 15

County Auditor, Book
175, pp. 215-218

County Record, p. 12

Inspector’s file, App
#1706, Permit #3498

County Record, p. 13

County Record, p. 8

Inspector’s file, App
#1706, Permit #34"98

Construction Permu
- 34498

Document List No. 1

Document List Nos. 2 and
3 ¥




County issues NOV and Stop Work ~ 7/28/98
Order to the Beas

[

The Beas submit first landscape plan 8/5/98
to County

County files an Answer to Director’'s ~ 8/10/98 Document List No. 4
Notice of Violation :

County rejects first landscape plan 8/12/98
and conditionally lifts Stop Work
Order

The Friends file Motion to Intervene 8/21/98

The Beas submit second landscape 8/28/98
plan to County

Commission starts hearing, provides 9/1/98 Document List No. 5
Notice of Hearing Procedures, acts

on some motions and takes others

under advisement

L-J - S B - S Y

- . s
N - o

Director issues Supplemental and Document List No. 7
Amended Notices of Alleged
Violation

- -
o W

Commission Chasir issues schedule 9/11/98 Document List No. 8
for Motions and Bnefing

Comtqueﬁ’theBm'&‘s:wnd 9/11/98
landscape ; copy to the Director
andthan&:ds with a deadline for

appeal 10/1/98

County identifies additional
violations and issues letter lo the
Beas requiring sieps required to be
taken to comply with conditions of
approval #13, #14 and #20

Director submits Motion Regarding Document List No. 12
Parties, requesting that the Beas be
made partics

— e e b e
- TS - SR ]

County submits "Various Motions" Document List No. 13

County submits Legal Memorandum _ Document List No. 14
in Support of Various Motions )

PAGE 7 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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Chair issues letier to parties,
providing ex parte communication
information

Friends file Memorandum in
Opposition to County’s Motion to
Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction

Director files Response to County's
Motions

Mr. Andersen files Reply
randum to Responses of the

Mr. Printz files letter in response to
Director's Motion Regarding Parties

Mr. Brush files request that Mr.
Quinn be recused

Commission continues with hearing;

approves an order joining the Beas as

parties; postpone additio hearing,

allowing the Beas time to answer and

prepare _

Ms. i vides additional ex 10/1/98
pmgangeommmPgﬁon information to

parties

The Beas' submit third landscape 10/5/98
plan and narrative to County

Mr.BmshismmieuertoMs. Evans 10/14/98
and Mr. Huston e hearing date and
ougoing violations

i 10/14/98

10/15/98

10/16/98

Document List No, 15
Document List No. 17

Document List No. 8

Document List No, 21

Document List No. 22




—

55.  Mr. Andersen writes letter to 10/16/98
Ms. Evans and Mr. Husten asking

that issue of the nature of Notice of

Violation be addressed at the pre-

hearing conference

B.  Other Findings

1. The County Director’s Decision approved the house and shop on an

e % N W e W N

RRERBETEIERESR =S

25
26

exposed bluff overlooking the Columbia River Gorg: The house and shop are highly visible
from at least four key viewing areas -- Interstate 84, the Historic Columbia River Highway,
Multnomah Falls and the Columbia River.

2. The subject of the County Director’s Decision was at the time a 40 acre parcel
with a pending land division. - The subsequent approval of the land division resulted in two
approximately 20 acre parcels.

3. The Management Plan identifies key viewing areas.

4 The County Staff Report dated May 16, 1997, states: “The building site fqr the
residence should be located on a portiocn of the property that minimizes visibility from key
vncwmgareas . . the proposed building should be setback [sic] 100 féet from the edge of the
bt limiting the visibility of the development from key viewing areas™ The house and shop
were approved find sited on 0B of the most promincat pordions of the paicel, There are at least
three altcmative building sites for thé house and shop that would be less visible from key
§ viewing arcas. These altemative sites are partially screened fiom key viewing ams by
topogiaphy and trees. For example, Site A would allow the buildings to be visuaﬂy subordinate.
On Site A, the same house (if it had been built there) would have the first 21 feét of the home

screened by existing topography. This location also would have allowéd the property owners to

PAGE 9 - FINDINGS OF FACT, , CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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mg:ci the fuel break and 200-foot forest setback requirements. In addition, the altemnative sites
would not place devc[;apméht ina buffer specified for the protection of water resources, sensiti\;e
plants, or sensitive wildlife sites and would not conflict with provisions pmt@cting cultural
resources.

5. County Ordinance section 22.10.020.B.5 states that “Ncw buildings or réads shall

be sited on potﬁoné of the subject property that minimize visibility from key viewing areas, . . .

“development shall comply with this provision to the maximrum extent practicable.” County

W 0 W A W A Ww

planners interpret Ordinance section 22.10.020.B.5 only to requirc that a dwelling docs not

-—
o

maximize visibility, not that the home must be placed in the spot on the property where it has the

-
N =

least visibility.

—
w

6. The slopes in front of the home and shop provided no existing topography for

—
E3

screening, since the property slopes away loward the river.

-—
W

7. The slopes in front of the home and shop would require significant re-grading to

b
(-]

stabilize plantings adequate to provide screening. The home was placed higher on the slope than
the Director’s Decision permitted.

-
N

8. Onlyﬁmﬁed-phnﬁngs,ﬂnbasgmss,canbeplaoedonﬂlesepﬁctankdminﬁeu

-t
L

9. The house could notrb-c visually subbrdinate from the key viewing areas within

Ny

two years, under the siting allowed in the Director’s Decision.

N

10. ~ The County Ordinances and Director’s ‘Decision roquire the home to be

surrounded by a maintained fuel break of 50 feet. Itmustbéilﬁgatedbrhaveﬁreresistant

25 vegetation, and for trees taller than 20 feet, branches within eight feet of the ground must be

26 | removed.  Within the fuel break, trees must be spaced so that there will be at least 15 foet

PAGE 10 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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, between the tree crowns at maturity. For example, the crown of a mature Douglas;fu is about 45
| fect in diameter, so Douglas-firs should be planted no less than 60 feet apart within the fuel
| break. Fires in the westem part of the Gorge, where this house is located, tend to jump from

| crown to crown, so fuel breaks are critical safety features. Given the trees present i)efore

landscaping activity began, only one additional Douglas-fir (or comparably sized trec) could be
planted within 50 fect of the house and still meet the fuel break requirements. ‘The plantings now
in existence, the third Jandscape plan submitted by the property owners; and the landscaping

requirements specified by the County do not meet the fuel break standards because the required

distance among tree crowns will not be maintained over time.
| 11. A twelve foot high tree in front of the house barely gets above the foundation line for
screening purposes. The home won't be visually subordinate within two years.
12. The third landscape plan submitted by the pmpeﬂyownerswillhot comply with the
scenic area Management Plan because it does not meet the fuel break requirements, nor will it

13. A healthy Douglas-fir grows apiuoximately 12 to 24 inches a year.

14.  The County Staff Report dated May 16, 1997, stifes: " . .. the height of th house

should be limited 50 as not to break the skyline: This can be achieved by reducing fhe overall
height of the house to one story with a daylight basement.” Under the Usiform Bﬁ!fiingCode
mdgmﬁaﬂywceptedtgrmhblogy,ﬁedﬁdﬁngascmmﬂymnshﬂedka&:ﬁc—ﬂoqﬁoum.
The home was not placed into the earth 1o qualify as a basement. The top floor docs not qualify

asaloﬂhm:seofﬂxeamotmtofﬂoofspaoeandthesepa:atemomsthatgobcyondthe,am

overlooking the floor below.
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15.  Condition 27 of the Director's Decision prohibits the house from being any higher

than 25 feet “above the floor cievation of the main floor.” The County planner who drafled the
bimctor’s Dec:sion intended that the language in this condition was to allow only 25 feet from
the ground floor, not the‘main floor. Because of the wording of the Director’s Decision, because
thc property owner presented blueprints of the proposed home relying on language of the
Declslon, and because the appeal period had run, the County dld not enforce the one story
reqximnent.'TheCountyadmitsﬂlatthehomedmnotm?eltheoneéto:yrequirement. The
County admits that the home is at least 35 feet high from the ground floor.

16.  The Directer’s Decision required that all biilding sites be staked and graded prior
to framing the foundations or beginning construction for staff to verify locations. County
planning staff was to receive 72 hours notice (o compleie these inspections. The County planner
never saw‘lhe stakes for placement of the home’s foundation, and did not receive 72 hours notice
to complete the inspection. TbehouscwasplaeedabomtenfectnonhofwheretheCounty
planner expected the home to go. TheCounlytookpoacﬁononcitberoflhmissum.

17.  The County Stafi Report dated May 16, 1997, states: “Dwellings shall be set back
&t least 200 feet from adjaceist properties. As a condition of FpHOAL applicant showld be
required 1o comply with above criterion [forest setback requirement).” On April 3, 1998, the
poputyomremrdﬁdwiththeCounty a quit claim deed, legal description, and plat map for
the subject parcel. OnApnl4 1998 lheCountyAssmsofsmapwasrcvnsedtoshowthe
boundaries of this new 20-acre parcel. On May 22, 1998, the County issued a bmldmg permit,

which was approved bytheCounty Planning Department, allowing the house 15 1o 20 feet from
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the southern boundary of the parcel. At the contested case hearing, the County planners testified
! they sill do ot know the location of the boundaries of the parcel,

18.  The County Staff Report dated May 16, 1997 finds: “[t}he existing topography
will be used to screen proposed development from key viewing arcas. The proposed hoiiié will
be cut into the base of a small hill on the property. This topographic feature is covered with
§ existing vegeﬁtion including fire tsic] trees that should be maintained to provide screening from
key viewing areas. However, existing vegetation will not provide sufficient screening from all
key wewmg areas.” The house and shop are nof screened by topography or vegetation. The
home is perchcd on the edge of the bluff and is highly visible from four key \ncwm/g arcas. As
described in Finding 19 below, the vegetation present at the time the County Director’s Decision
I wasisstnédﬁouldnotﬁave screened the house or shop from key viewing areas.

19.  The County Staff Report daled May 16, 1997 states: “ . . . construction of the new
buildings and road will be effectively seieened by existing vegetation. . . and will minimize fhe

visibility of grading activities seen from key viewing areas.” There is virtually no vegetation in

front of the home, shop, or area graded to screen them from key viewing areas. Much of the

existing vegetation, including several small fir trees, was reinoved by the propesty owners. No
- wﬁonwastakenbytheComtyconccmingtheremoval of the existing vegetation. County
plannashwwmmevegetaﬁonoﬁgimnymmwogl_dmtbe,enoughtommebome,shop :
or arca graded. This is evident from Condition 30 reqiiring the property owners “to plant 20
sawuingmwi&iloin&om°mepm§osedhomemwbehindtbepmposedhmﬁe.”

20.  The elevation drawings submitied by the property owners staté: “Barn and shop

not visible to key viewing areas.” It also states: "House to be built into embankment so as to not

PAGE 13 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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53

break :reteiﬁe" and that only 20 percent of the home is “scen from 2 sites as yard, daylight
basement, garage, shop and barn are not seen from any view points.” Contrary to these
stalethcnts, the house and shop are visible to key vicwing areas, and the house breaks the tree line
or skyline.

21.  Existing topography is the most important aspect for ;cmening structures because
topography is permanent. The sites chosen by the property owners and approved by the County '
for the dwelling and stmchues’make no use of available topography on the parcel as a whole.
IIThcre was no existing topography in front of_whcre the home or shop were sited that would
saeenthcstuctmm_ﬁnm key viewing areas.

22, | The Coﬁﬁty Director’s Decision stales: “A grading plan shall be submitied by the
applicant if more than 100 cubic yards of prading or filling will occur. The staff report also
states: “Grading will be necessary for the proposed developments. However the construction of
the new buildings and roads will be efiectively screened by existing vegetation on the biuff
(busedontbepmposedlocationshownonthesiteplan)andwillminimizethcvisibﬂityof
grading activities seen from key viewing areas.” Over300¢ub1cyardsofmatmalwascxcavated.
from the site prior to any constrisction. County planners visited thie site afler approximately 300
mmdsofgmmgmmungmmbmmdmmmepmmomm
prepare a grading plan. 'Iheallcredslopcsarews:bletokeywcwmgamsandaddtothe
expansiveness ofthc developmmt and contrast to the natural vegetation and topography of the”

23, Thehomchasavmyshnnggeom@cshapetbatstandsmsharpconuasttothe
S\mmmdmglandswpe 'lhehonzon(al lmcoftheshopalsostandsmcontmstmththe
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surrounding landscape. Shape is an imporiant factor that adds to the reasons the house and shop

are not visually subordinate.

24.  The Skamania County Staff Report dated May 16, 1998, statcs that “{t]be exterior
of buildings on lands seen from key viewing areas shall be composed of nonreflective materials
or materials with low reflectivity, unless the structure would be fully screcned from all key :
viewing areas by existing topogﬁpﬁc features.” It further states “[t]he submitted application

indicates that the pmposﬁl color of the development will comply with the above criterion. The

V- T RS R T S G O

applicant should be required to submit color samplés to the Department, prior to issuance of a

—
(=]

building permit, to verify consistency with the above critérion.”

(=Y
—

25. The home has many large areas of unbroken window surface which increase

12
13 | reflectivity, and add to the amount of light seen through the windows at night.

14 26.  The home has cedar siding of a light color that contrasts with the surrounding
15

16
17

18 )
19 | o pew buildings shall remain below the skyline of a bluff, liff or ridge 25 seen from key

landscape and vegetation. The green color of the shop and roof of the house and the white color

of the shop doors also contrast with the surrounding landscape.

27. The Skamania County Stafl’ Report dated May 16, 1997, stales: “[t]he silkouette

- 20 ﬁewingmfﬂnhoniehukstheskyﬁnc,assemﬁompmﬁomofmc&hmbiamva.

211 - 28, The only comment made by the Coluinbia River Gorge Commission Staff during

the 21-day comment period on the Bea's application, NSA 96.81 was conceming the proposed

23 :
development being within 1000 feet of a sensitive plant site.
24 : _—_
25‘ 29.  In another case (NSA 95-104), the Skamania County Board of Adjustment held

26, | that the Executive Director of the Columbia River Gorge Commission lacked standing to file an
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appeal against Skamania County, inidependent of the Columbia River Gorge Commission. The
Board of Adjustment also held in that decision the Gorge Commission “is the appellate body that
wili hea: a future appeal afier the Board of Adjustment renders its final decision. . . and {thus] the
Gorge Commission cannot appeal Skamania County’s de_cisiou and then hear the case on any
subsequent appeals by the parties.” The Board stated the “appeal filed by the Gorge Commission
violates the appearance of faimess doctrine and is clearly a conflict of interest” “Neither
Jonathan Doherty as staff to the ColumbiavRiver Gorge Commission nor the Gorge Commission
itsclf can appeal a County decision that may be appealed to that Commission at some future
date.”

30.  The information sent to the Excculive Director by the County, both before and at
the time of the County Director’s Decision, including the property owners® application, the site
plan and the clevation drawings,”could reasonably be read to mean that the decision would
comply with the Scenic laws. The site plans and elevation drawings provided by the property
owners were incomplete, inaccurate, and depicted vegetation that does not achially exist on the
property. In addition, some of the findings and conclusions in the County decision inaccurately
stated that several aspects of the development would comply with the Seenic laws..

31. The Commision_didvnot find that there was m:sreprmentahonorﬁ'aud on the part
of the County in the Director’s Decision.

32 No County official atiempied to improperly isiflucnce the Director’s Decision.
33, The problems with the County’s original decision were compounded by the
County’s fmlu:eto enforce several conditions of that decision.

'PAGE 16 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER




34. At least until afier the Executive Director’s Notice of Alleged Violation, the

—

Comity took no action o enforce terms and conditions of the County Director*s Decision that
were violated 'by the ptoperty owners in the course of the develoﬁment in at least the following
respects: (1) failing to give 72 hours notice to complete the site inspection; (2) removing existing
trees and vegetation in front of the home; (3) building a three-story house rather than the
permitied onc-story house with a loft and daylight basement; (4) siting/placing the house within

200 feet of the adjacent property to the south; (5) failing to submit a grading plan when more

V-J - T - V. R N .

than 100 cubic yards of grading or filling occurred; (6) building the house in a differeat location

p—
[

!llmnindicatedtotheComtyplaimcrs,(?)choosingadesignandmatgﬁalthathaveahigh

—
[y

reflectivity and color that does not blend with the surrounding Jandscape; (8) planting trees

—t
[ 8]

within the 50 foot fuel break; (9) failing 1o submit a new site plan to the County Planning

Department before oan a building permit for the shop; and (10) begimming construction of
ﬂ:ﬁbod‘sewidwuta permit from the County.

—
w

— s s e
-~ & Wn

the property owners failed to satisfy certain conditions, the stop work order would go into effect

—
[ ]

{ on the 21st day. Theeondiﬁonswgenotmet,buttthoﬁmtyfaﬂedtomfométhcstopwork

—
0

order,

S

N

approval of the current site of the house. In 1993, the Cenimission staff considered and denied a

i

“land division and proposed development of the same property. The comments by Commission
24 ’

staff at that time merely indicated that there woulld probably be a site for a house on the parcel

PAGE 17 - FINDINGS OF FACT » CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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35.  OnAugust 12, 1998, the County seat a letter to the property owners stating that if

36. At no tme did any Commission staff person, either past or present, express.




i § that would cémply with scenic restrictions. There was no specific consideration, and cerlainly no
2 approval, of thc current site of the house. 7
3 37.  The Commission staff did not make a site visit during the formal process that led
4 : ‘ _
g to the County Director’s Decision in this case. Regular site visits are not typical and are probably
6 || not appropriate when a county has chosen to implement the Act. The Commission staff makes
7 | routine site visits only in the géographical areas in which the Commission bas refained
8 { respoasibility for implementation.
o ,

10 V. JURISDICTION

u The Columbia River Gorge Commission derives it jurisdiction from the Columbia River

12 Gorge National Scenic Area Act and thé interstate compact adopted i)y the States of Washington

13 and Oregon. 16 USC 544 et scq.; RCW Chapter 43.97; ORS 196.150. The Commiséion

14 conducted this hearing as an enforcement action and a contested case, both of which are

(s governed by Commission rules, 1611.8.C §§ 544a-544f; 5441; S44m(a)(1); 544m(3); 544(b); -

Commission Rule 350-30 ct seq.; Commission Rule 350-16 et seq. Specifically at issue in this

—
-]

17 contested case proceeding was Section 15 of the Scenic Act. It reads in part:
18 Enforcement 4

19 (a) Administrative remesies. (1) Commission orders. The Commission shall
monifor activities of counties pursuant t6 this Act and shall take such actions as
20 it determines are mecessary fo emsure complisnce. (2) Appeal (0 the
‘ commission. Any person or entity adversely affected by any final action or order
21 of a county relating to the i lementation of this Act may appeal such action or
e ordqmthegomnﬁssionbl;fngﬁngwﬁhﬂle‘%mmisimwithin30daysofm
22 acﬁmorordéf,awﬁﬁmpcﬁﬁ@nmqu@diﬁgﬂmtawhacﬁonororderbcmodiﬁed,
terminated, or set aside. (3) Civil penalties.  Any person or catity who willfully
23 violates the management plan or any land use ordinance or any implementation
measure or any order issued by the Commission pursuant to this Act may be
24 assessed a civil penalty by the Commission not fo exceed $10,000 for each
: violation. Nopcnaltymaybease&edundeﬂhismbsecﬁonmﬂ&ssalchpersonor
25 - enfity is given notice and opportuanity forapublicbearingwith'rwpecttosmh
. violation. The Commission may compromise, modify or remit, with or without
2% conditions, any penalty imposed under this subsection, taking into consideration
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the nature and seriousaess of the violation and the efforts of the v10|alor to
remedy the violation in a timely manner.

16 US.C. § 544m(a)emphasis added).

Skamania County and the property owners moved to dismiss the Notice of Alleged
Violation and Supplemental and Amended Notice of Alleged Viclation on several grounds. The
Commission rejects these arguments and believes it has jurisdiction over this matter.

Theugummtsof:hecoumymdmepmpmyownersmbasedinpmonmeir
mtcxpretanon of Washington state land use law. They argue that the Commission is bound by
this law. The Commission disagrees. Secuon 5(b) of the Scenic Act states in part:

For the purposes of providing a uniform system of Iaws, which iu addition to
this Act are spplicable to the Commission, the Commission shall adopt

Iaungtoadminisu'anveprocedure,themakmgofeonmcts,
conflicts-of-interest, financial disclosure, meetings of the Commission,

adwsorycommnﬁe&s,anddxscloaneofmformahonconsnst@mthtlnmore
restrictive statutory provisions of e:thq' State,

16USC. §544o(b)(emplmsxsadded)

The Commission has always interpreted the above ptovisi.on to mean that the Scenic Act-
govamallwtionsoftheConinﬁmionvﬁththeaddiﬁonofthoseamsspedﬁgdlyﬁstedabove.
Astoihoseaddiﬁomlms,thcmomwﬁcﬁvclaws of cither the State of Washington or the
State of Oregon apply to the Commission. 'Ihoseaddltlonalareasdonotmcludelanduselaw
lndeed,d:cydonotmcludcanyotherstatclawdcalmgmth substannvemvuonmemalandland
nseregulahon. 'Ihus,evmifﬂneCounly’sa_rpddnpmpeit’yowncrs‘ interpretation of Washington
landuselawiséoﬂect,theCommissionisn;)tboundbyWashingtonlandusclaw,hul;tlhcris

PAGE 19 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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| bound by the pmvisfons of law contained in the Scenic Act and the Columbia Riv,_e__E,:{;Gorge
| Compact between Washington and Oregon.! |
L As mentioned above, the> Scenic Act requires the Commission to monitor the activities of
counties, directing that the Commission “shall take such actions as it determines are necessary o
| ensure compliance.” 16 US.C. §5441i1(a)(l). Whilc the Commission hopes to use its powers
under this section sparingly, it is clear that the Act provides for serious situatiﬁns such as the ope
prescuted here. The testimony showed that the County Director’s Decision was in violation of
: theScuﬁcActutheﬁmchwasissuedmﬂdlmdleCountydidnotenfmsevcml provisions of
: |tsmdecmonmthwhnchthcpropeﬂyowmsdxdnotcomply The result is a home and
| shop on thes:tedmlarenolmoomphancew:thexthqtheSoechct, the County’s Ordinance,
| oF the County Dircctor’s Decision. The evidence here also showed that because of where the
w was allowed to be sited, it would be very difficult, and most likely impossible, to obtain
mwmﬁMMoywmmeSecnicAdwuntheCommissionhm
cirannstanmtotakc“snchacﬁonsas it determines are necessary to ensure compliance with the
Scenic Act”. 16 USC §544m(a)1). |
ma&ﬁﬁonaiargmemﬂ:mtthommissionisbomdmdleﬂlirtydayﬁmeﬁmefor
filing a1 appeal of a final action is also not persuasive. To reach the resulf put forth by the
County and the property owners, this Cotimission would have o interpret Section 15(a2) as
| limiting the duties outlined in Scction 15(a)(1) to only those activities of counties that could be

{ discoversd within 30 days. The Comunission does not agree with this interpretation of the Scenic

TR T s e




Act. The Scenic Act provides for a situation liké the present case where the defects in the
County Director's Dzcision could not reasonably have been discovered within 30 days of the date
of the decision. E- »

There are other reasons why the local appeals process should not be binding on the
Commission. As a notable example, the Skamania County Board of Adjustment previously heid
that the Executive Director lacked stunding to appeal against Skamania County. Furthermore,
the Board of Adjustment concluded that appeals by the Commission would violate the

| Appearance of Faimess Doctrine and create a conflict of interest, because the Board viewed the

S/v ® N o v s W N

—

Commission as an appellate body that would hear an appeal from the Board. An important

-
—

additional flaw in the jurisdictional arguments is that the County changed its Director’s Decision

_ ‘
N

well after the time period set for appeal. For example, the County approved a revised site for the

-
o W

shop on June, 10, 1997, one day afier the deadline for appealing, the Director's Decision. See #11

—
W

and #12 of stipulated chronology.

—
-

m&mmmdwmmdandauthcotherargumentswmmngjmsdmumbythc

—
~J

Couﬂyuﬂmepmpatyownasandfomdﬂlanmpummswe,mdudmgthosepmfmwudby

—
-

the property owners regarding agency and collateral estoppel. Thepmpedyownetsclaim&atan

3 &

agmymlaﬁmd:ipcﬂﬂsbdmntﬁcComtyandmeCommissiommﬂthmmmfm.thc-

N
—

ComnﬁssionislimitedinitéactionstotheenfomentoftheComtyDimc(m’sDecision.Whilc :

8

duCommmmtmdsmlﬂmnslupsmﬂnﬂnewmﬂwhbcapa@ershpmpmcﬂmltﬁms, the,

23

7 (hmmmondownotagreeﬁmtalegalplmclpal-agmcyrelahonshxphasbeenformedtothe
24

eﬂi:etofbhulingtheCommissiontotheactsoftheCounty. Totheeonu'ary,theActdicwwa

26 | different relationship, with the Commission bearing ultimate responsibility to ensure compliance.
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Finally, the Commission rejects the argument put forward by the property owners that it
lacks jurisdiction to hear this matter under the doctrine of collateral estoppel. This argutnent can
readily be dismissed because, among other reasons, there has been no prior adjudication of this

matter.

VI. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Violations of the County's Ordinance and Other Scenic Laws by the Co_m_;g
Planning Director's Decision

A.

In this part of the order, the Commission first states the applicable law. for each major
sub]ect. The Commission then statm its conclusion on whether that law was violated, along with
-the uitimate fact or the basic reason for that conclusion. Ofien, the ultimale fact and the basic
teason are the same. The Commission’s broader analysis and teasoning is sct forth in VIL
Opinion and Reasons.

The first topic addressed below is scenic resources and visual subordinance. Because this -
case involves damage to important scenic resources, visibility and visual subordination are of
primary concern. Indeed, with the possible exception of the setback requirements, all of the
topics addrwsed below involve some aspect of the visibility of the development in question.

1. Scenic Resources and Visual Subordinance

12 The federal Scenic Area Act states that *The purposes of the Act arc . . . to
pmtectandpmvidefortﬁcenbmmentofthesccnic.;.rmommofdlqulumbiaRiveerge
...™ Section 3; 16 USC §544a. ‘

1b. The Scenic Area Act also requires that ™. . . residential development outside
urban areas take place without adversely affecting the scénic . . . resources of the scenic area . . .”
Section 6(dX8); 16 USC §544d(dX8).

. PAGE 22 - FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
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B lc.. The Management Plan states that ™. . . new development &1 lands seen from
key viewing areas shall be visually subordinate to its landscape setting.” Policy 1, GMA
Policies, Scenic Resources Chapter, p. I-7 (emphasis added).

Id. Section 22.04.010.153 of Skamania County Ordinance 1993-04 states:

"Visually Subordinate' means a description of the relative visibility of a structure
where the structure does not noticeably contrast with the surrounding landscape,
as viewed from a specified Vaula‘g:"poinl, generally a key viewing area.  As
opposed to structures that are fully screemed, structures that are visually

rdinate may be partially visible. They are not visually dominant in relation to
their surroundings.

N R W N WY B W N

le. The County’s decision violates these provisions of the federal Scenic Area Act
and Management Plan because the development in this case adversely affects scenic resources
and is not visually subordinate. Location of the home and other stiuctures makes it extremely

—
N -

difficult, and most likely impossible, to obtain visual subordinance. The home will definitely not

—
- W

2. Siting
2a. Section 22.10.020.B.5 of Ordinance 1993-04 provides:

—
W

—
-]

minimize vi ty ey viewing arcas, unless the siting would place
devdopmeuth:abuﬁ'a@eciﬁedforpmtwﬁonofwmmm,semiﬁvc
3 iG ildlife si conflict with provisions protecting
TESOUrces. Insuchsitlntions,dcvelopmemshallmplywiththis
k provision fo the maximum extent practicable.
(Emphbasis added.)
2b. Beemmethehousemdshopwcrelocdtedonanexpomdbluﬂ'ononcof
themostpmminentporﬁonsofﬂ:eproputyandmvisibleﬁomatlwstfmkéyviewingat_eas,
despite the availability of alternative sites, the County's :decision violates this part of its
ondinance. County Planners interpret Ordinance section 22.10.020B.5 only to sequire that a
dwelling does not maximize visibility. This is 00t a corréet interpretation of the Ordinance.
3. Topography/Vegetation

B2 E8S =3
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3a. Section 22.10.020.B.6. of Ordinance 1993-04 provides:
In siting new buildings and roads, use of to
devel t from key viewing areas shall be
achieving visual subordinance, such as
artificial berms to screen the development
(Emphasis added.)

3b.  Because the County approved sites for the house and shop that did not give

hy and vegeétation to screen such
iven priority over other means of

lanting of new vegetation or using
from key viewing areas.

priority to topography and vegetation to screen the development, the County’s decision violates
this part of its ordinancé. There was no topography in front of the house that would screen the
development, and the vegetation that was on the site at time of the approval would not adequately
screen the home or shop Alternative sites A, B and C are well screened by existing topography
and vegetation as seen from key viewing areas.
" 4 Orading/Cut Banks
4a. Section 22.[Q.920.B.7. of Ordinance 1993-04 provides:

New buildings and roads shall

be designed and sited to minimize activities and
visibility of cut banks and fill

slopes from key viewing areas,
4b. Because the County approved a house with a daylight basement on a south-
facing slope that is highly visible from at least four key viewing areas, and allowed the relocation
of the shop (o the west of the homie where prading and the structire were lighly visible, the
County’s decision violates this part of its ordinance,
5. Size, Height, Color, Eic. ’
Sa. Section 22.10.020.B.1. of Ordifance 1993-04 provides:

Size, beight, shape, color, reflectivity, landscaping, siting or other aspects of
proposed developments shall be evaluated to ensure that such development is
mbmdinatetoitsscuingasseenﬁomkeyviewingarms."'
[E l - ":,) .

5b. Because the County approved a house and shop that are very large and

geometric in shape, have strong horizontal lines, have large unbroken window surfaces, have a
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Ly Il light cedar color _for siding (bome) and a green color (shop and roof of house) l.ha? does not blend
into the surrounding landscape and is reflective, as well as the lack of available landscaping due
to fuel break requireﬁ:ents and constraints of the location, the house and shop are not visuaily
subordinate and the County decision violates this part of its ordinance.
6. Breaking Skylme
6a. Section 22 10.020.B. 12 of Ordinance 1993-04 provides:

The silhouette of new bmldﬁg§ shail remain below the skyline of a bluﬂ‘ chiff or
ridge as seen from key v:cwmg areas.

- TR B - S R L
—

(Bmphasisaddo&i.)

6b. Bwausethehouseproﬁud&sabovetheskylmcassem&omﬂ:eColumbla
R.wer,ﬂ:eCmmtyvnolaiedthmpMofusordmanoe ’lthlrectorsDecmonwasmté;);dedto
allow a house at least 35 fectmﬂ,bwausethelmguageoftheDlrectorsDectsmnstatedﬁntﬂ:e
total height of the house shall ot exceed 25 feet from the main floor: This was interpreted not to
bethegmund floor. The County did not enforce its intent.

1. Forest Setback

- e e e s
oW N e O

.
L4

16 7a. Section 22.08.070.B.2.4 of Ordinance 1993-04 provides:
17 The vﬂofmwdweﬂmgsandmysmwtmonfomlandssbaﬂ
s comply with the following standards:
o Dwellings shall be set back at least 200 feet from adjacent propesties.
20 (Emphaﬂsaddei)
Tb. - Beeansctbe(}ountyallowedthehousetobesnedbcfomthelanddl
21 wasﬁmﬁMandbeeaﬁscﬂnCmmtywasmtawmofwhmethepropeﬂyﬁnesqumﬁl
2 sometime afier the land division was approved on Agril 3, 1998, the County violated this part of
z its ordinance. The Director's Decision resulted in siting the home less than 200 fect from the

aljacentptopeliytothesomh.
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B.  Violations in the Implementation of the County's Planning Dircctor’s Conditions

of Approval

—

--As discussed above, the Céunty’s decision imposed a number of conditions that appeared
| to require compliance wnth the Scenic Area Aci, the Management Pﬁan and the implementing
| ordinances. However, by subsequent failure to enforoé these conditions, the County has allowed
i additional violations of the Scenic laws to occur. Based upon the findings of fact set forth above,
{ the Commission concludes that the County has further violated the Scenic laws by failure to
| enforce the conditions of approval as follows:

L - B B - T 7. R - PN R N ]

la. Condition #1: "All developmen_ns shall be consistent with the enclosed site plan,

—
[

| unless modified by the following conditions of approval. If modified, the site plan shall be
| consistent with the conditions of approval "

- e
N e

ib. As constructed to date, the house is not consistent with the site plan. Furthermore,
the property owners have still not submitied 4 site plan that is consistent with the conditions of
approval,

2a. Condition #2: "All buildings shall be sumounded by a maintained fuel break of 50
feet....”

g
w

—
(%,

—
[- )

2b. metsﬁmmyshowedthatthethhdhndscapcphnsubuﬁt:edbythemnpeﬂyownus

does not mect cither the County landscape requirements (of July 28, 1998, and September 11,
1998) or the fuel break requirements.

—
~J

—
[ ]

8 &

Ja. Condition #13: “Dwellings shall be st back at least 200 feet from adjacent

3b. At the time of the hearing, the house clearly violated this condition because it was
approximately 15 feet from the adjacent property to the south.

4. Condition #22: "A grading plan shall be submitted by the applicant if more than 100
cubic yards of grading or filling will occur.*
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4b. The property owners excavated of disturbed more than 300 cubic yards of material

| without submitting a grading plan.

Sa. Condition #23: "A new site plan shall be submitted pﬁor to issuance of any building
permits. The new site plan shall show one location for each of lhe~ proposed buildings. Al
required screening trees, especially those requited for the barn and shop location northeast of the
home site (if those sites are chosen), shall also be shown on the new site plan."

5b. The property owners submitted a new site plan, but it did not comply with County
requirements,

6a. Condition #27: "The proposed residence shall be limited in height so as not to break
the skyline nor the tree canopy. The house shall be limited io one story with a daylight basement.
However the main floor may include a loft so long a5 the total height of the house, above the
floor elevation of the main floor, does not exceed 25 feet.” |

6b. In addition to violating the ordinsnce (see finding of fact # 8 above), this condition
has ot been complied with by the property ovwmers or enforced by the County. The house clearly
breaks the skyline from the Columbia River, akey viewing area.

"6¢. The county did not eaforce its decision that the home was to be one story. The
County and the property owners admit that the home is more than a one siory home.

7a. Condition # 28: "The building sitcs for all buildings shall be gradéd and staked prior
to framing the foundations or beginning construction for staff to verify locations. Planning staff
needs 72 hours notice to complete these site inspections.” .

Tb. Thehﬁldingsitefmtﬁehomewasmtgmdedandstakedpﬁorwconsmwﬁonas
required by this oonditién.

Tc. Thc County did not and has not enforced tluscond:hon, including the 72 hour notice
- - L - .

8a. Condition #29: Applicant shall be required fo retain all existing vegetation cover
screening development from key viewing areas except for the small alders and berry bushes to be
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removed at bﬁilding sites. The two exﬁsﬁng fir trecs, the proposed home will be located between,
shall be reimned for screening purposes.”

- 8b. The property owners did not comply with, and the County did not enforce, this
condition. Much of the existiné vegetation was removed, and the house was not located between
the two existing fir trees in a way that provided screening.

9a. The County stop work order provides: "If you fail to satisfy these conditions, then
the stop work order will immediately go into effect on the 215t day."

9b. The conditions were not met but the County failed to enforce the stop work order.

VII. OPINION AND REASONS

A.  The Significance of this Case ,

From both a policy and legal perspective, this is the most significant enforcement case in
the 12 year existence of the Commission. This is the first circumstance where a combination of
ambiguitics and inaccuracies in the application and in the County Director’s Decision, together
with lack of compliance with and enforcement of the conditions of the County Director’s
Decision, have made it necessary to challenge a development - already undér way. The
Commission found it necessary to invoke Section 15(a)1) in this. case because of the
development's egregious impacts on scenic values of the Gorge, which did not become evident
until construction was well under way.

‘ For instance, the elevation drawing submitted by the property owners, upon which
analysis of the application had to rely staies: "[hjouse only scen directly from 1-84 and Columbia |
Riwr, as vegctation hides all else. Only 20% of bome seen from 2 sites, as yard, daylight
basement, garage, shop and barn are not seen from any view points.” The Director’s Staff Report
finds “[¢Jhe existing topography will be used to scréen proposed development from key viewing
areas. The proposed home will be cut into 1€ Base of a small hill on the property. This
topographic feature is covered with existing vegetation including fire {sic] trees that should be
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retained to provide screening from key viewing areas.” The Director’s Decision states thal

“applicant shall be required to retain all existing vegetation cover screcning development from
kéy viewing aress.. .”. Yet the record demonstrates the nﬂity that the house is not screened to
any meaningful degree by either topography or vegeiation, and is virtually 100% visible from
several key viewing areas. If the Gorge Commission could not correct situations like this
through its use of 15(@)1), the scenic resources of the Gorge have no secure proiection.

Under Section 15 of the Scenic Area Act, the Commission is explicifly charged with the
duty to moﬂito-r County "ac(iﬁtirs," and this means the full range of county actions -- permit
procedures, approval of development and enforcement of its ordinance. 16 U.S.C. § 544m.
However, Congress did not stop there. The Scenic Act directs this Commission fo "take such
actions as it determines are pecessary {0 ensure compliance® 16 UiS.C. § 544m (emphasis
supplied). Thus, the Commission belicves that; under the laws of United States and laws of both
the State of Washington and the State of Oregon, it has a mandatory duty to ensure compliance
with the Scenic laws. That is all the Commission seeks to do in this case.

B. The County’s and the Property Qwners® Case
I "~ As both the Findings of Fact and the section on Jurisdiction make clear, the County and

the property owners relied almost entirely on procedural or jurisdictional defenses.

Indeed, the Skamania County Prosecutor Brad Andersen has been quite open and candid
withtPcCommisiononﬂﬁspoint. For example, in his brief summary of the County’s position,
Mr. Andersen states: : 7

Skamania County is only defending against the Executive Director’s chalienge
because it believes the Executive Director was (and still is) asking the Columbla
River Gorge Commission to take action against a final land-use decision. Right or
wrong,:ts[sxc]aﬁnaldecisionthatcannotbedlsunbed. :

7 Skamania County Position, November 18, 1998 (see document with yellow cover titled
“Revised Chmnology and Parties’ Summanes pages in this documesnt are not sequentially
mmlbered,lmtthedocmnenlmqumsuonlsﬂlcthlrdpageofﬂle(}o‘mtysmatcnals) As
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discussed above, none of these jurisdictional defenses were well four.ded; in the Comutnission’s
judgment. ) ] '

As to the merits of the case, namely the alleged violations oi‘ the Scenic laws and the
County’s own conditions of approval, even the testimony of the County’s and the property
owner’ér own witnesses only sérved lo>oonﬁrm the alleged violations.  For example, the county
planners, including both Mr. Mazeski and Ms. Fagemess, testified that to “minimize” visibility,
the County only sought to find a site that was not the worst. This approach contradicts both the
professional and lay understanding of the word “minimize”, which is “to reduce {6 the smallest
possible number, degree, or extent” Webster's Third New Intemational Dictionary (1993). Asa
second example, the same County planners acknowledged that the condition on the height of the .
homewaspoorlydmﬁodandmigbtnotasureoomplianoe\\"iththeComty'sordinance. Asa
final example, when asked 1o explain why he did ot adhere to a particular condition of approval,
Mr. Bea candidly testified that he did not pay much attention to and was only generally familiar
with the conditions, " )

C.  County Violations of the Scenic Laws and Its Own Land Use Ordinance A
preponderance of - the evidence in this case clearly shows that Skamania County violated the
Soenic Laws and jts Wi land use ordinance i the approval of the permit i his matter and it its
subsequent actions. This includes failing to ensure the conditions wers enforced. ‘

" The violations are demonstrated through. objective, évidence that goes beyond mere
interpretation. Photographs and documents dépict the results of a decision that does nof comply

wi;h the Scenic laws and the County’s ordinance. Moreover, as just noted, the violations are
farther confitmed in admissions made by the staﬂ"ofthre County planning and building
depastments. The construction of the housé and shop and the buildings themselves violated, and
inﬁostinstanmoonﬁnmtoviolatc,sevémlkequdirementsdflheSceniclaws. 'I‘hedwel]mgs 7
adversely affoct soenic resources and are not visually subordinate. They were sited in locations

that did not minimize visibility, take advantage of existing topography and vegetation, or
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minimize grading. The size, height, shape, reflectivity and color of the dwelling and shop all
contribute to the visual dominance of the structumc The house protrudes above the skyline as
seen from the Columbia River, a key viewing area.

Whenever the Commission considers development decisions that affect scenic resources,
the Commission is attentive to the cumulative impacts of such decisions. In some related
instances, the Sceaic Area Act specificaliy requires consideration of cumulative impacts. This is
true, for example, in the enforcement cases that involve appeals to the Commission of county
decisions implementing the Act. 16. US.C. § 544(m}a}2) (see definition of "adversely affect"
in16USC.§ 54 ().

 Standing alone, the development in this case has significance. With the possibility of

additional, similar developments, the significanice incieases dramatically. Furthermore, this case
involves a county that has chosen to implement the Scenic Area Act and that will be faoed with
similar development decisions in the future. The Commission strongly believes that the
aroneousdecisionoftthountyinthismseshouldﬁotsténdasapmoedmtforﬁnurecam.

D. Choice of Remedies

In choosing a remedy, the Commission’s overriding duty is “to easure. compliance.” 16
USC §544m(a)l). To ensure oomphmce in this case, the Commission concludes in the
foﬂoﬁhgswﬁoﬁof&hmderﬂmt&c@mtymuﬁ,ﬁfsgwneﬁ&eﬁolaﬁmini&oﬁginﬂ
decision, second, issue a lawful decision, and third, enforce the lawful decision. Finally, because
virtually every aspect of the work done on 1hé site to date has violated the Scenic laws, the
Commission has concluded that furthér development must be stopped tntil the County has
revisod its decision: N

The Commission joined the property owners because of its belief that their participation

was needed for a just adjudication of this action. The Commission ruled in joining the property
owners that without their participation, they would not adequately be zble to protect their
interests, and complete relief could not be afforded. Without joinder of the property owners the
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1 {j Commission also believed that Skamania County nﬁght be placed in a position of incurring

inconsistent obligations. The property owners were given opportunity to prepare for the hmnng,
which was delayed to give them adequate preparation time, and they were allowed to submit
briefing, present testimony and, conduct cross examination and were giveh all procedural rights * |
equal to the other partics. ’ - 1

The Commission recognizes that the actions directed by thié Order are quite forceful.
Nonctheless, in determining an appropriate remedy, the Commission must make a case-by-case
docision that carefuily and fully considers the full record. This case is replete with factors that
the Commission sincerely bopes will not repeat themselves:

- I R Y - YT, Y S R N
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* A county responsible for implementing the Scenic laws has instead committéd numerous and
serious violations of those laws.

—
Pt

*

TheCotmtyhas compounded the problem by fmlmgtoenfome evcnthelawﬁxl ta'ms of its
original decision.

The affected property owners have themselves seriously contributed to the pmblcm by
' actions that did not comply With the coriditions imiposed by the County.
Themuhmwnsuwtmnachﬁtymdadwemngmdshopthagmlwsmnedied,wiﬂ
pammﬁymdsigniﬁmﬂydmage&empmﬂeledsoeﬁcmmmat@nmandmc
two states have sought to protect.

In summary, nothmgshortoftheachonsdnctaiedbyth:sorderwﬂlﬁllﬁllthe

(bmnnsmonslegaldtﬂytoenmoomphamcwnththeSoemclaws.
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21 Vill. ORDER
2 ltisordegpdthatallofthefollowingactionsbetakeninanoordanoewiﬂ:ﬂlespeciﬁed
23 | timelines:

24 " Cessation of Development
25 " 1. The County shall immediately issue an order ‘stopping the property owners from

26 || continuing any development activity on the site until and unless in accord with a County
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Decision issued in compliance with the remaining poﬂidns of this order, or unless it is activity

designed to achieve full compliance with Scenic Laws which has been approved in writing by

both the County and Commission. The County may cite this Commission's authority and order
as the basis for the County’s order. )

2. Notwithstanding paragraph one, the County may exempt frofm its order any reasonable
actions taken fo protect the structures in question from weather damage. Any provisions of the
County’s order dealing with weather damage shall be reviewed and approved in advance of
adoption by the Executive Director.

' Revising the County’s Decision and Issuing a Lawful Decision

3. No later than sixty (60) days afier adoption of this order, the County shall revise
Director's Decision NSA-96-81, Part #2 and adopt & new or revised decision that is in full
compliance with the provisions of the Sceniic Aréa Act, Management Plan and Skamania County
Land Use Ordinance 1993-04, including but not limited to siting the structures at alternative sites -
in compliance with Sections 22.10.020.B5-7 and 22.10.020.B1 of Skamania County Land Use
Ordinance 1993-04.

Bringing the Development into Full Compliance |

4. The Cotinty shall take all necesssry steps to assure that developineat on the property in
question is Brought into full compliance with the Scenic Act, the Management Plan and the
County’s ordinances no later than 180 days from the adoption of this order.

It is further ordered that: -

Continuing Jurisdiction

5. ‘The Commission retains contising jurisdiction over this case.
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Severablility
6. If any provision in this order is found to be unconstifutional or otherwise unlawful, the

Commission intends and directs that all other provisions remain in effect.

DATED this 25 day of \Z_AM 1
hatr, Columbia River
Gorge Commission
DATE of Service:

NOTICE: You arc eutitled to judicial review of this Order. Judicial review may be obtained by
appeal to the Washington State Superior Court within 60 days after the date of service of this
order. 16 U.S.C. § 544 (bX4), (6).
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